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[START RECORDING] 1 

[background noise] 2 

ANTHONY SETTLE:  Good evening, good evening, 3 

can I have your attention?  During the question 4 

and answers period in tonight's agenda.  5 

[crosstalk] 6 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  Quiet. 7 

MR. SETTLE:  During the question and answers 8 

period of tonight's agenda, we ask that all 9 

questions be placed on an index card.  If you 10 

would like to have a question answered, we ask 11 

that you write the question down on the index 12 

card that you can receive on the sign in table.  13 

We will not take open questions from the floor.  14 

Only questions on the index cards will be 15 

answered.  So, if you would like to pose a 16 

question, anyone can, please, uh, proceed to the 17 

sign in table to write the question down and a 18 

volunteer will then retrieve the index card from 19 

it and your question will be answered.   20 

[crosstalk] 21 

BUFFIE SIMMONS:  Tony?   22 

MR. SETTLE:  Good evening. 23 

[crosstalk] 24 

MR. SETTLE:  My name is Anthony Settle and I 25 
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will be the active moderator for tonight's 1 

proceedings.  This is a joint public hearing by 2 

members of the Department of Education, the 3 

Community Education Council, School Leadership 4 

Team to discuss the purpose of a school - - 5 

proposed school truncation from PS 22.  6 

Tonight's proceedings will be recorded and 7 

transcribed.  All, all those who have signed up 8 

to make a public comment, you are asked to 9 

please state your name clearly and for the 10 

record so that they be reflected accurately.  11 

Before we begin the hearing, we ask that anyone 12 

who wishes to speak directly on the comment 13 

portion of tonight's proceedings to please sign 14 

in at the sign in table outside in the hall.  15 

Sign up will end in approximately 5 minutes.  If 16 

you do have a question and you would like to 17 

have addressed during the question and answer 18 

portion of the agenda, please write the question 19 

on an index card provided at the front table.  20 

Only people who have signed up to speak will be 21 

allowed to participate in the public comment and 22 

only questions that are on an index card will be 23 

answered by the dais.  To be respectful of 24 

everyone's time, all panel participants were 25 
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asked to be here no later than 5:30 this 1 

evening.  Now that we have started, if a panel 2 

participants who arrive late, he or she will be 3 

given the time to speak at the first opportune 4 

moment.  We want to be respectful of everyone's 5 

time.  There are a few elected officials with us 6 

and they will be given an opportunity to speak.  7 

If they wish to speak, if they arrived late, we 8 

will make every accomodation to give them an 9 

opportunity to speak at an opportune moment.  10 

Those who are here at the start of the public 11 

comment will be asked to speak first.  I ask you 12 

now to take a moment or two to take a look at 13 

your agenda and there are some that aren't 14 

there, so one's posted on the front of the, the 15 

dais.  The format of tonight's proceedings will 16 

include a presentation of the proposal, 17 

presentations by hearing participants, followed 18 

by public comment.  Speakers should have already 19 

signed up at the sign in table in the lobby.  20 

Public comments can no, be no longer than 2 21 

minutes in length.  The time will be strictly 22 

followed and speakers will be informed when 23 

their designated time has come to an end.  There 24 

will be a question and answer period.  If you 25 
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have a question, we ask that you write the 1 

question on an index card that you received 2 

during the, that you received at the public sign 3 

in table and that you obtained from an, obtained 4 

from one of the volunteers on the floor.  Staff 5 

members will organize the questions into 6 

categories and have them ready for the question 7 

and answer period.  Some questions will be asked 8 

directly and others will be batched under a 9 

single heading in order to avoid repetition.  10 

Even though all individual questions will not be 11 

addressed in the form this evening, the answers 12 

will be posted on the website prior to the panel 13 

meeting.  If at the end here, you still have 14 

questions, we ask, we encourage you to direct 15 

them to us by calling the, the number at the 16 

bottom of the fact sheet or sending them to us 17 

via email to the address at the bottom of your 18 

fact sheets.  I would now like to introduce 19 

members of our panel; Superintendent Buffie 20 

Simmons, Deputy Chancellor Dorita Gibb, Gibson, 21 

SLT representative, uh, CEC representative 22 

Kenneth Wright, SLT representative Tameka 23 

Carter.  We are also pleased to have the 24 

following elected officials with us this 25 
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evening; uh, particularly Council Member James.  1 

And now I would turn proceedings over to our 2 

deputy chancellor, Dr. Dorita Gibson who will 3 

present to us a proposal.  4 

DORITA GIBSON:  Thank you Mr. Settle.  Good 5 

evening ladies and gentlemen and thank you for 6 

being here this evening.  I'd like to, um, just 7 

acknowledge all of the people in our - - and our 8 

network leader, Ruth - - , Mark Sharps and our - 9 

- leader - - Maldonado and also present is our 10 

CSA representative Ms. Kathy Murphy, um, so with 11 

her, her counterpart and I thank them for being 12 

here to support - - .  Uh, I, I have to say that 13 

this is not a easy thing to do.  Um, I know that 14 

this is a difficult, um, situation in the school 15 

and we come together to talk about what next 16 

steps could possibly look like as we move 17 

forward.  Judging from the amount of people that 18 

are here this evening, I understand your 19 

concerns and will be taking your, your, your - - 20 

messages and, um, - - what you have to say about 21 

PS 22.  This joint public hearing was convened 22 

to discuss the proposed phase out of PS 22.  The 23 

decision to phase out the school, as I said 24 

earlier, is not an easy one.  We do not take 25 
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these decisions lightly, we examine many 1 

factors and data before we first make the 2 

purpose, to make this course of action.  We also 3 

reach out to families and community members.  4 

Before I present PS 22 proposal, I'd like to say 5 

a few words about why we are here.  All of us 6 

count on our school to provide high quality 7 

education to students, but we must hold all 8 

schools the same standard because every child of 9 

the city deserves the best possible education 10 

and as the next one.  When a school is failing, 11 

not getting the job done, we have to take action 12 

to ensure it's current students don't fall 13 

behind even further and new students will have a 14 

better classroom and there are more options for 15 

them as they move forward.  PS 22 is located at 16 

443 St. Marks Avenue, community school 317 in 17 

Brooklyn.  It currently serves students in 18 

kindergarten through 5 th  grade and offers a pre-19 

kindergarten program.  On December 19 th , 2011, 20 

the New York City Department of Education 21 

published a proposal to phase out PS 22 based on 22 

its long standing performance goals.  PS 22 23 

performance data indicated the school has 24 

struggled and confirms the DOE's assessment of 25 
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the school lacks the capacity to turn around 1 

quickly to better support the students needs.  2 

For example, PS 22 earned an overall grade of F 3 

on its 2010-2011 progress report including F 4 

grades for student progress and school 5 

environment and a D rating of student 6 

performance.  In 2010-2011, the majority of PS 7 

22's students remained below grade level in 8 

English and math, only 30% of students performed 9 

on grade level in English and only 32% of school 10 

performed on grade level in math.  PS 22 is also 11 

- - helping students make progress as 12 

demonstrated by the fact that PS 22 is in the 13 

bottom 17% percent of all elementary schools in 14 

New York in terms of learning goals in English 15 

at the bottom 6% in terms of learning goals in 16 

math.  If these results persist, the students at 17 

PS 22 will fall further behind their peers in 18 

other schools.  Because of these evaluations, 19 

the DOE conducted a comprehensive review of the 20 

school to determine which supports available to 21 

them best benefits the students and community.  22 

The DOE also consulted with - - of other 23 

experienced educators who have worked closely 24 

with the school and held community meetings with 25 
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the parents and school staff to solicit 1 

feedback.  Based on this comprehensive review 2 

and evidence that additional supports were not 3 

working, the DOE believes the only and the most 4 

serious intervention, the gradual phase out and 5 

eventual closure of the school will address this 6 

long standing performance struggles and allow 7 

for a new school - - to develop that will better 8 

serve future students in the broader school 9 

community.  PS 22 is located in the building 10 

K022 and a separate EIS posted in January 12 th , 11 

2012, the DOE has proposed to collate a new 12 

elementary school.  17K705, an independent 13 

charter school, the - - Charter School in K022.  14 

Both K705 and Explore C Charter School serves 15 

from basic kindergarten through 5 th  grade when 16 

they reach their full scale in 2014-2015 school 17 

year.  17K705 is also expected to offer a pre-18 

kindergarten program.  17K705 serves students 19 

residing in PS 22 zone and provides new 20 

elementary school options to district 17 21 

families and replaces these lost by this 22 

proposed phase out of PS 22.  The Explore C 23 

Charter School will give the highest priority in 24 

this lottery to the students residing in PS 22 25 
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zone and who are at the risk of academic 1 

failure.  17K705 and Explore C Charter School 2 

will be collocated in K22 with PS 22 has its 3 

phase over the school's phase in.  Before we 4 

move to all the comments of this meeting, I 5 

would like to briefly discuss the impact of this 6 

proposal on current PS 22 students and families 7 

if this is, this proposal is approved.  If this 8 

proposal is approved, PS 22 will be phased out 9 

gradually over the next several years and will 10 

no longer be accepting kindergarten through 3 rd  11 

grade students after the end of this school 12 

year.  Current kindergarten through 2 nd  grade 13 

students will remain at PS 22 until, until the 14 

end of the school year and they will be assigned 15 

to K705, the new elementary school in September 16 

in this building.  These students will also 17 

apply to the Explore C Charter School and will 18 

open here with grades K through 3 in September.  19 

The current grade 3 and grade 4 students who 20 

meet promotional standards at the end of the 21 

school year and current 5 th  grade students who do 22 

not seek promotional standards in the new school 23 

year will remain at PS 22 and will be supported 24 

in their progress to work towards completion of 25 
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elementary school and the transition on to 1 

middle school.  So, the current 5 th  grade 2 

students who meet promotional requirements at 3 

the end of the school year will apply to middle 4 

school through the district 17 middle school 5 

choice process.  PS 22 will close after June, 6 

2014 at the end of the 2013-2014 school year 7 

when the school is scheduled to close.  Any PS 8 

22 students who do not meet promotional 9 

standards will be supported in transitioning 10 

into 17K705.  Thank you and I look forward to 11 

hearing your comments.  Mr. Settle.  12 

MR. SETTLE:  Thank you Dr. Gibson.  Our next 13 

presenter at this time will be Mr. Kenneth 14 

Wright of the CEC.  15 

KENNETH WRIGHT:  Dr. Gibson and members and 16 

of the staff, parents, SLT members, uh, the 17 

parent leaders of this school, to review the 18 

matters concerning PS 22 and having some 19 

discussion with the community and with some of 20 

the parents as the presiding officer and 21 

representative from the CEC, uh, my comments are 22 

as follows in terms of the proposed phase out of 23 

PS 22.  After reviewing the data in this 24 

proposed phase out and having determined that it 25 
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is deficient in its present form to warrant a 1 

phase out.  The reasons for this are many.  2 

There is soft data that this proposed phase out 3 

hasn't been included in this report.  4 

Additionally, that during the 2009-2010 annual 5 

review, the information and data - - and 6 

assessed was not shared with the PTA, the SLT 7 

nor was any effort by the Department of 8 

Education to initiate the quote-unquote high 9 

quality education program and included parents 10 

in any proposed, uh, initiation to turn that 11 

around.  When the school went from an A to a C 12 

and then to an F, - - that 2009 period. The 13 

Department of Education, uh, failed to include 14 

the parents in any initiated program that would 15 

turn this school around nor did they share the 16 

information with the parent leaders, the PTA and 17 

the SLT.  The CEC has very little information, 18 

very little involvement in the proposed phase 19 

out.  I also find it difficult to understand how 20 

the Department of Education has, uh, put the 21 

same information in this report as in reports 22 

for 161 and 587.  It's the same regurgitated 23 

information.  The parents are provided with, uh, 24 

percentages of students who are not proficient 25 
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in math, not proficient in English but the 1 

soft data to determine why that is the case is 2 

not presented to the parents.  So, if you don’t 3 

present that information to parents and you 4 

don't share that with them and with the parent 5 

leadership, then you cannot really state to the 6 

parents we have plans.  You don’t share the 7 

information, you don’t share the plans, how is 8 

it that the confidence of education plan has, 9 

has - - the SLT have any inclusion in changing 10 

the, the makeup or the grade of the percentage 11 

of proficiency in, in the school?  There is no 12 

soft data contributing to the facts, uh, that 13 

were assessed by the Department of Education in 14 

this report.  There, in this report, I do not 15 

find that there is a leadership evaluation.  If 16 

you do not determine the, if you don’t make an 17 

evaluation of the leadership and how the 18 

leadership is structured then how can you 19 

determine whether or not the health of the data 20 

pool was sufficient?  Again, the information 21 

contained in this report, without the Department 22 

of Education's support of this school, it's the 23 

same information that was given for 161, a 24 

school to be truncated in our district as well 25 
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as 587, a school to be phased out in our 1 

district.  So, my question is; is the Department 2 

of Education using the same cheap models, same 3 

information, same data, same program to turn 4 

around schools that is not working?  I believe 5 

the question has to be whether or not the 6 

evaluation by the Department of Education was 7 

sufficient and whether the programs in using 8 

their wording, high quality education, was 9 

really installed, was really put to test and was 10 

really evaluated?  Further, the teacher 11 

evaluation was also a factor, was the teacher 12 

evaluation included in this report or wasn't?  13 

So, if you don't include an evaluation by the 14 

teachers in determining whether or not to phase 15 

out the school, how can you also present that 16 

information to the parents and say listen, we 17 

evaluated the leadership, we've evaluated the 18 

teachers and these are the reasons why we have 19 

determined the school should be phased out.  The 20 

other fact that wasn't included was the current 21 

enrollment of the students of the school.  Was 22 

the current enrollment of the students of this 23 

school, of this school included in that 24 

evaluation?  Yes.  The numbers indicated by the 25 
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Department of Education, uh, 30% in math, 30% 1 

in English, but is there a soft data reason for 2 

that that you have presented to the parents that 3 

they understand; that to, to present it to the 4 

parent leadership that they understand, that you 5 

presented to the SLT that they understand and 6 

then work with the SLT, work with the parent 7 

leadership and determine how can we change that 8 

around.  If you just take numbers and data and 9 

then present them to the parents and say we're 10 

going to close the school, I'm sorry, I don't 11 

think that's sufficient.  There is no review or 12 

comment made in this report by the SLT.  There 13 

is comment and review in this report made by the 14 

Community Education Council; I don’t believe 15 

that this community, I don’t believe that this 16 

school, I don’t believe that the parent 17 

leadership nor the CEC were given the 18 

opportunity to review the data by the CEC, I'm 19 

sorry by the Department of Education in 2009 20 

when the grade went from an A to an F.  There 21 

are comments made in our community by teachers, 22 

by administrators that that grade is a direct, 23 

uh, direct result of the state test scores.  So, 24 

there are many schools in district 17 that are 25 
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as that went to D or B to a C and that is a 1 

directly attributable to the test scores for the 2 

state.  In short and in closing my comments, 3 

there appears not to be an alignment with the 4 

Department of Education, the administrators, the 5 

teachers of this schools, the parent leadership, 6 

the Community Education Council in providing 7 

information, sharing information prior to making 8 

that determination.  I believe that the 9 

Department of Education has - - failed in making 10 

parents of this school not included.  11 

Furthermore, if you phase out this school and 12 

you get another school, you place another school 13 

in this building with another number and utilize 14 

the same designation as provided in this report, 15 

the same supports that you gave 22 in 705, 16 

what's to say that 705 make the same failure.  17 

What is to say that in a year or two from now, 18 

that 705 won't start off with an F and end off 19 

with an F?  I believe that's the question that 20 

the Community Education Council requires an 21 

answer from the DOE on in determining the 22 

information that was taken, not only how it was 23 

shared, how it was utilized and again, this is 24 

the same information that came from 61, 161 and 25 
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from 587.  It's grades and a quick 1 

determination.  Inside this report, the DOE says 2 

that they supported the leadership, it's the 3 

same support that was given to the other schools 4 

that are being phased out of our district.  The 5 

support that was given to the faculty, the 6 

teachers is the same support that was given to 7 

587 and 161.  It's a fact that the Department of 8 

Education continuing, continuing to support 9 

these schools and faculty and the students with 10 

information and support that has been efficient.  11 

When that information is not shared with the 12 

parent leaders of the - - , it is clear that 13 

the, the phase out that we're talking about 14 

needs to be reconsidered.  There are further 15 

comments that will come in writing from the 16 

Community Education Council for this district, 17 

I'd like to thank the, uh, assistant chancellor 18 

for her comments that she shared.  But I believe 19 

that this community deserves a little bit more 20 

in terms of information and a plan of action.  21 

Thanks.   22 

[crosstalk] 23 

MR. SETTLE:  I'd like to announce the sign 24 

in for the public comment is now closed.  Uh, if 25 
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you would like to pose a question during the 1 

question and answer phase of tonight's agenda, I 2 

ask that you please see a volunteer to obtain an 3 

index card, write the question on the index card 4 

and it will be addressed.  Open questions from 5 

the floor will not be taken during the question 6 

and answer period.  At this time, I'd like to 7 

ask, uh, the representative from the CE, from 8 

the SLT, Ms. Tameka Parker.  9 

[crosstalk]  10 

TAMEKA PARKER:  Good evening parents, 11 

parents, representatives, elected officials, I 12 

stand here, uh, in here today as a concerned 13 

parent.  When we were told that we, our school 14 

would be phased out, I was saddened to hear 15 

that.  Um, and DOE hasn't given us any paperwork 16 

stating that this new school - - comes in for 17 

our children with special needs will be served.  18 

We have a large population of children with 19 

special needs in this school, our school is a - 20 

- preschool which takes all children with all 21 

kinds of disabilities.  Um, we have not heard 22 

that our children will be guaranteed a spot when 23 

the 705 comes in.  Y'all saying that 705 going 24 

to be moving, going to be coming into this 25 
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building, but it's, like, we, we're here at 1 

this hearing but you guys are already have it in 2 

place that 705 will be in this building because 3 

you're already hiring a new principal and 4 

charter school is ready to come in and you're 5 

not giving PS 22 a chance to make changes.  We 6 

need an opportunity to make changes at PS 22.  7 

We have put in new programs, we have had 8 

outside, um, entities to come in to our school 9 

to assist us.  We have been doing well since we 10 

got help.  Our school will supposedly be phased 11 

out, you have to give us a opportunity to 12 

maintain that PS 22, there are schools, 161, 587 13 

as our CEC representative said, that we are 14 

still getting the same blueprint plan.  What are 15 

you saying?  What makes 705 any different than 16 

any other school that comes into our building?  17 

There's a school in the Bronx that is below PS 18 

22 average and these parents and the teachers 19 

came together and they fought and they're not 20 

closing, why are you giving them a chance and 21 

not giving us a chance?  You are phasing out PS 22 

22 but it's not like you're phasing, phasing us 23 

out, you're kicking us out.  You're not giving 24 

us any opportunities, any opportunities to make 25 
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changes for our school.  We have children in 1 

this school, in this school that came, came from 2 

pre-K to 5 th  grade - - .  That's all valuable, 3 

but you like to not look at that.  Every year 4 

you make changes to the testing and you expect 5 

us to, the children to adjust to these changes, 6 

they're, each child is different, each child 7 

needs to get extra help with these testing, um, 8 

scores, these tests.  So, I'm trying to find out 9 

why don’t you help us, not close us, help us, 10 

not phase us out?  These are things that we're 11 

asking, we need your assistance.  The teachers 12 

need your assistance at PS 22.  You have to 13 

offer extra services to our, to our students.  14 

We lost, um, 6,000, what was it, 18, 6,000, 15 

what, what 618,000, $618,000 last year in 16 

funding.  So, these services and these funds 17 

are, they're supposed to be given for not 18 

receiving.  We're not receiving and in order to 19 

make the school better, we need that extra help.  20 

And you - - bring 705 and - - bring us 705, 21 

you're not going to guarantee the pre-K because 22 

it said in the paperwork that if there if 23 

there's additional funding, you might have a 24 

pre-K.  The neighborhood is still the same, it 25 
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was the same people, the neighborhood is not 1 

changing, the neighborhood is not changing, 2 

you're putting in these new - - , but the 3 

neighborhood is not changing.  We need a pre-K. 4 

We definitely need a pre-K because in this 5 

neighborhood, all the childcare services are 6 

closing.  We need a pre-K in our school.  We 7 

need to have opportunity to do better.  Give us 8 

a year, give us two years to turn it around.  9 

Anything is possible, give us a chance. 10 

[crosstalk]  11 

MR. SETTLE:  Thank you, at this time I'd 12 

like to ask Council Member, Letitia James. 13 

[crosstalk]  14 

LETITIA JAMES:  Good evening everyone.  15 

 [crosstalk]  16 

MS. JAMES:  So, I've been to a number of 17 

these hearings to recognize and to understand 18 

this is pretty much pro forma and the DOE, the 19 

dye has already been cast.  I also have, I do 20 

apologize in advance because I have to go 21 

another hearing where they're proposing, to 22 

close out Chapter 7 at 200 Willoughby and on 23 

Thursday I'm going to a hearing regarding 161, 24 

the truncation of 161.  But I just want to say 25 
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the following because I recognize that the 1 

decision related to PS 22 will not be made here, 2 

but will be made across the river, um, over at 3 

The Tombs.  It's important that everyone know, 4 

and particularly the media, okay, so 5 

particularly the media know what we have done 6 

here at PS 22 and how this is a, a fight we're 7 

having and this is the time that we should all 8 

come together to save this school.  Now, let me 9 

just say that I have nothing against charter 10 

schools.  Nothing against charter schools, but I 11 

believe that PS 22 should be given a chance to 12 

succeed.  There is enough-- 13 

[crosstalk] 14 

MS. JAMES:  --I believe that this is an 15 

example of benign neglect on the part of the 16 

Department of Education.  17 

[crosstalk] 18 

MS. JAMES:  I believe that phasing out 19 

schools is not a good public policy.  20 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  No, it's not.  21 

MS. JAMES:  And does not represent 22 

educational progress as far as I am concerned.   23 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  Right, she's right. 24 

MS. JAMES:  And let me just say that when 25 
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this school went from an A to a C to a F, no 1 

one contacted my office, no one contacted the 2 

administration, no one contacted the CEC-- 3 

[crosstalk] 4 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  No.  5 

MS. JAMES:  --here are resources for your 6 

children.  7 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  That's right.  8 

MS. JAMES:  The reality is, the reality is, 9 

is that a significant number of the children 10 

here in this school are homeless.   11 

[crosstalk] 12 

MS. JAMES:  And I think that all children 13 

should be getting quality instruction.  But 14 

children not only who are homeless because I've 15 

seen children who come from some challenging 16 

circumstances go on to become city councilors.  17 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  All right now, all right 18 

now.  19 

[crosstalk] 20 

MS. JAMES:  I know that they have within 21 

their DNA the ability to be great, but only if 22 

given the proper resources.  And so, this school 23 

with a significant number of children with 24 

challenges, children who need individual 25 



 24

instruction were never given the resources.  1 

They were never given - - . 2 

[crosstalk] 3 

MS. JAMES:  And you better stop clapping 4 

because you're, you're on my time, so shut up.  5 

Thanks.  Save it all towards the end.   6 

[crosstalk] 7 

MS. JAMES:  So, children with special needs 8 

need individual coaches.  They need individual 9 

education plans.  They were never provided that.  10 

Children in classrooms where you need not one 11 

teacher, but two teachers, they were never 12 

provided that.  Children who need smaller 13 

classrooms were never provided that.  It was my 14 

office that provided the labs.  It was my office 15 

that provided the PTA a playground.  It was my 16 

office who provided some other resources.  But 17 

it was principal Padmore who came to this school 18 

several years ago and who faced a number of 19 

challenges and has changed things around and 20 

unfortunately, has not been dealt the proper 21 

respect and protocol that he deserves.  Okay, 22 

that deserves applause. 23 

[crosstalk]  24 

MS. JAMES:  - - number of afterschool 25 
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programs.  I provided help with some funds to 1 

partner with MoCoda, the Museum of Contemporary 2 

African Diaspora Art, so children would know 3 

their backgrounds.  There's a significant number 4 

of children here in this school where English is 5 

their second language and where is the 6 

assistance for them?  So you can't walk into a 7 

situation and say close down the school when the 8 

school has been - - for years.  It's wrong.  And 9 

it's unfair.  Now, I want people to be honest 10 

with me, to be intellectually honest with me.  11 

If this administration wants to privatize 12 

schools, then say so.  If you want to take the 13 

public out of schools, then tell me that.  But 14 

don't tell me that a school is failing when you 15 

have never provided any resources.  None.  When 16 

you have not provided them with the instruction 17 

that they needed and they resources that they 18 

needed and you have not addressed all of their 19 

concerns and issues that have been put forth to 20 

you by this administration and by this city 21 

council member, - - the director, because she 22 

wanted to take the school because she wanted to 23 

engage in privatization because she wanted to 24 

experiment on my children and - - they want to 25 
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transform this school because of changing 1 

demographics.  It's wrong.  It is wrong.  It is 2 

wrong.  It's wrong.  And so, I join with the 3 

PTA, I join with the members who stand with me 4 

today to say to the mayor of the city of New 5 

York that if anyone should be graded, it should 6 

be you.   7 

[crosstalk] 8 

MR. SETTLE:  This now concludes the public 9 

comment, this now concludes the formal portion 10 

of our presentation.  And I ask that the 11 

following people line up at the microphone to 12 

make their public comment; Elise Goings, 13 

Kathleen Murphy, Randy Lee Ware, Verna Verzeen 14 

and Patricia Whyte.  Elise Goings, Kathleen 15 

Murphy, Randy Lee Ware, Verna Verzeen and 16 

Patricia Whyte.  You are reminded that the 17 

public comment is to be limited to 2 minutes in 18 

length.  There will be a timekeeper who will 19 

signal you when you have reached 30 seconds and 20 

then we will ask you to please wrap things up. 21 

Ms. Goings. 22 

ELISE GOINGS:  Okay.  Good evening, ladies 23 

and gentlemen. I'm here to say no charter 24 

school, no phase out, keep PS 22, help our 25 
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children, help our school.  Thank you very 1 

much. 2 

[crosstalk] 3 

KATHLEEN MURPHY:  Good evening.  4 

FEMALE VOICE 2:  - - start the time.   5 

MS. MURPHY:  Good evening everyone, my name 6 

is Kathleen Murphy.  I'm representing the 7 

Council of School Supervisors and 8 

Administrators.  The DOE has scheduled 25 more 9 

schools, now 30, 58 total for phase out and 10 

closure and said that new schools opened under 11 

Mayor Bloomberg are better than those they 12 

replaced.  Yet, in the latest round of closings, 13 

11 schools were opened during this mayor's 14 

administration.  Ironically, some of the mayor's 15 

new schools are usually among those that are 16 

closed and become, become part of the vicious 17 

cycle of failure.  New York City public school 18 

system is not a place for experimentation where 19 

we open and close schools to students who have 20 

already been traumatized by previous school's 21 

closings.  Then there is the tragedy of all the 22 

young people who have not been saved, even 23 

briefly, by the city's new school safety net, 24 

yet have been turned away from, from new schools 25 
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for reasons of poor academic achievement or 1 

for other reasons and sent to be warehoused at 2 

other low performing schools that will probably 3 

close too.  This is a losing strategy for 4 

turning around low performing schools which are 5 

inevitably attended by children of color from 6 

economically disadvantaged communities.  The end 7 

game of the strategy is to eliminate schools 8 

that the administration has had at least a 9 

decade to fix and to improve the data by 10 

creating new schools that won’t have their own 11 

data for as long as four years.  The fact is 12 

that closure is an admission of failure by city 13 

hall.  The Bloomberg administration needs to 14 

take more responsibility, not less, for schools 15 

that are not doing well rather than turning them 16 

over to private entities like EPO or closing 17 

them and washing their hands of the deep-rooted 18 

problems that has been unsuccessful in 19 

remedying.  Thank you.   20 

RANDY WARE:  Well, good evening.  This mic 21 

is disturbing.  Please let me say to everyone 22 

here and to this distinguished panel; tonight I 23 

am deeply moved that and I know I have two 24 

minutes, but I need to say this to you; my back 25 
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is not to you, but I stood like our 1 

councilwoman Letitia James, I feel that you have 2 

turned your backs on us.  And I am want to say 3 

to you Dr. Gibson in your statement, you said 4 

that we are a community school, but in 5 

actuality, we are not community-based, but we 6 

are an extension of an outer periphery of a 7 

community.  Kids are bused in to this school, 8 

they are general ed buses that run four buses a 9 

day.  21 stops in the a.m., 27 stops in the p.m. 10 

starting at 6:00 a.m.  Then we have a special 11 

needs deployment that goes from door to door and 12 

we have over seven buses that are bringing them 13 

in.  Our day is different, the - - is different.  14 

We are truly a - - school and I would for the 15 

CEC - - to indicate it.  If we are going to be 16 

barrier free in this building, how in the world 17 

can you say that we have unutilized space and 18 

then crowd us in and now in the special needs 19 

students won't have enough space to be free in 20 

doing what they need to do.  I also want to say 21 

to the CEC that they indicated that you grabbed 22 

data that was not so certain.  There is a kernel 23 

- - suspicion from me that you did not look at 24 

the foundational level of our school.  The 25 
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foundational issues are that we have been a 1 

school that has been striving but we have been 2 

handicapped from the onset.  We are school that 3 

is trying to provide for our community but 4 

without the assistance of the DOE.  So, I'm 5 

saying to you tonight, before I leave here, 6 

because I left a place that I was going to do 7 

some outside service, but I'm going to say to 8 

this school, many of the parents have shown up 9 

to say to you, with a sounding voice, the 10 

archives of our history sits in your hands 11 

tonight.  I say it with emotions, I stand with 12 

facts.  Bleak bones of civilization have come to 13 

ebb at our feet and I'm saying to you as Dr. 14 

King has said, previous - - had done before, 15 

where do you go from here?  Are we going to do 16 

teach better or are we - - .  17 

[crosstalk]  18 

AMINA DELEON:  Um, good evening parents, my 19 

name is Amina DeLeon.  Good evening - - .   20 

[crosstalk] 21 

MS. DELEON:  Okay.  So, I would like to, uh, 22 

say that I would like to see a future of PS 22 23 

for the children over here.  When you do change 24 

the name of the school, it will not change the 25 
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population of the community - - for.  It will 1 

not change the needs of the community.  The 2 

children needs assistance so that they can excel 3 

and this school is affiliated with resources in 4 

the community such as our - - program and the 5 

afterschool programs.  And one of the things 6 

that's important to - - our child's academic - - 7 

is to know that our child has a safe place to 8 

be.  And I think that PS 22 is a safe and 9 

enriching atmosphere academic environment and I 10 

hope for the future of the school, no 705, no 11 

charter school, no new names, let's save the 12 

children everyday.  13 

[crosstalk] 14 

MR. SETTLE:  Uh, Ms. Patricia Whyte.  15 

PATRICIA WHYTE:  Yes. Community members, my 16 

name is Patricia Whyte and I'm here to find out 17 

- - .  Okay.  I'm - - .  18 

MALE VOICE 1:  Fix that mic. 19 

[crosstalk]  20 

MS. WHYTE:  - - my name is Patricia Whyte 21 

and I can't understand whether this school here 22 

- - school and it's part of our - - .  I realize 23 

that this school stay the same and I hope - - .  24 

I mainly - - are here tonight to represent the 25 
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school because people have said well people 1 

speak for them.  But please do not close the 2 

school.  Many of them are living in this 3 

neighborhood, we have black kids in - - very 4 

far.  It's far for them to walk, the school's 5 

too far.  I am disabled, I have to bring - - up 6 

here a lot of kids, a lot of parents walking and 7 

they can't, they, they, they, problem is here - 8 

- in the afternoon - - .  And then they're going 9 

to come the neighborhood and close down the 10 

school, where are the children that speak all 11 

the languages going to go?  And there's the 12 

international school, the children are all 13 

nationalities coming here to speak our language 14 

- - very good school and that's all I have to 15 

say - - .  16 

[crosstalk]  17 

MR. SETTLE:  I'd like to call, I'd like to 18 

call the following people to the microphone; 19 

Martha Simmons, Tameka Carter, Amina DeLeon, 20 

Cassandra Townsley.  21 

[crosstalk]  22 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  Nobody here use this 23 

microphone.  It's out - - .  24 

[crosstalk]  25 
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MARTH SIMMONS:  Hi, good evening, my name 1 

Martha Simmons and I'm community advocate for 2 

district - - .  Um, I'm the representative - - , 3 

I'm here to represent PS 161, I'm here to 4 

represent, um, PS 22.  When I found out that PS 5 

22, 587 and 161 was slated to close, I came over 6 

and I met with the superintendent, I - - I met 7 

with the principal, I met with the staff, I 8 

consulted with them.  I understand they're - - 9 

changes.  - - I ended up going to the - - 10 

administration - - take them - - and then I 11 

became certain that - - conversation that - - 12 

school - - um.  One of the things that fits, 13 

I've been - - school should provide - - but - - 14 

education - - parents were, um, we are - - she 15 

gave 2 70s and a 60s, she gave a - - .  And here 16 

at PS 22, - - we are because we are through 17 

networking and networking - - our principal.  18 

I'm asking you to give us a chance, I'm asking 19 

you to give us a chance.  I just want 25 - - 20 

kids, - - 75 parents - - child.  Now it's 6,000, 21 

I'm in the 6,000 - - paralyzed person.  I work 22 

hard and I'm tired of fighting the Board of 23 

Education.  Won't you come to court with me?  24 

The whole district I feel is without a strong 25 
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parent leader because a parent leader will - - 1 

be upfront and lead - - and at my school, the 2 

teaching department tends to discourage parents.  3 

On Saturdays, they have one assistant principal, 4 

we have two parents involved in leading our 5 

children.  We have teachers - - .  They are 6 

teaching from the school who's asked them from 7 

161, she is here tonight, - - what she - - .  8 

So, I'm - - it's not - - everything that I 9 

needed to say, don't think they're - - , not if 10 

- - 25.  I believe it's 25 - - and I'm just - - 11 

asking you - - work with us.  My sense of value 12 

- - too much - - .  I - - the Board of 13 

Education, I've been a congressional - - .  I'm 14 

in the congressional books of record, if you 15 

want my - - go to Washington - - .  I'm asking 16 

you for a - - , I'm not asking for - - yet.  I'm 17 

not - - words or speeches.  I know about this, 18 

this is my concern because when they hear me, 19 

I'm going to still be right here working - - .  20 

I have a citation - - from my councilman as a - 21 

- .   22 

[crosstalk] 23 

MS. SIMMONS:  And I'm asking you to work 24 

with me, not to - - programs, the - - .  I love 25 
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- - you have a great - - and this has to be - 1 

- people.  Only thing I've said work with us, 2 

work with us, pray on it.  I'm going to call me 3 

a - - I believe in our God and somebody have a - 4 

- they will listen to me.  We got to work 5 

because that's all you got to do is work with 6 

us, because, you know what, I'm working on being 7 

the best - - .   8 

[crosstalk]  9 

MR. SETTLE:  Thank you - - .   10 

[crosstalk]  11 

FEMALE VOICE 3:  Number seven.  Number 12 

seven. 13 

MR. SETTLE:  Number seven, number eight.  14 

FEMALE VOICE 3:  Number eight.   15 

[crosstalk]  16 

FEMALE VOICE 3:  What's the name?  17 

MR. SETTLE:  The person who has number seven 18 

is now sitting on the dais, so we go to the next 19 

speaker.  20 

FEMALE VOICE 3:  Number eight. 21 

MR. SETTLE:  Number eight.   22 

MS. JAMES:  Um, one question, um, why are 23 

they bringing a charter school and a general 24 

elementary school, is it because of the 25 
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neighborhood being gentrified?   1 

[crosstalk] 2 

MS. JAMES:  That's, that's what I want to 3 

know. I volunteer in this school and when I walk 4 

into school and I saw the teaching that's being 5 

done in classrooms, I'm amazed, some of the 6 

teachers bring the school these students from 7 

below along that to a higher reading level.  I 8 

saw when I came in, I looked, I'm like I'm, I'm 9 

amazed.  I don't understand why all of a sudden 10 

a charter school, they bring in a charter school 11 

and a new elementary school.  Is it because the 12 

neighborhood is changing?   13 

[crosstalk] 14 

MR. SETTLE:  We will - - more questions at 15 

the question and answer phase.  So, that's now 16 

what I would ask you to do is please if you give 17 

your index cards to one of the volunteers, we 18 

will provide, we will try and provide, provide a 19 

response to the questions as - - .  Next 20 

commenter, please.  21 

FEMALE VOICE 3:  Number nine.   22 

ELISE GOINGS:  Good evening, my name is - -23 

 .   24 

[crosstalk] 25 
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MS. GOINGS:  Um, just one comment that I 1 

made previously that - - .  I want to say that 2 

there's something at PS 22 took care of my son, 3 

took care of your children, to close it down - - 4 

the department but yet, we get his application 5 

for 5 th  grade are the schools with Ds and Cs, so 6 

if you cared so much about my child's education, 7 

why was not my child provided with all A 8 

schools?   9 

[crosstalk] 10 

MS. GOINGS:  - - but see the truth about the 11 

education and his learning is all the schools on 12 

that list should be A schools because you know 13 

we should you know what, we, not 22, but we 14 

failed your son, so now we're going to go back 15 

and A, a so-called A school but now it's done.  16 

And the C schools, the Cs and maybe a B, there 17 

was one A on that entire - - .  I - - about my 18 

son.  So, that's what you're giving us about oh, 19 

we can help these children, please save it for 20 

someone else because it's not, it's not working 21 

for me or, or many of these other parents.  So, 22 

that's why I - - so, thank you. 23 

[crosstalk]  24 

CASSANDRA TOWNSLEY:  Pardon the disruption - 25 
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- thank you.  Good evening, my name is 1 

Cassandra - - Townsley, I am on the Community 2 

Education Council for the district 17.  I am the 3 

second vice president and I have to say I agree 4 

with my counterpart who sits on the dais right 5 

now, we are definitely opposed to this school 6 

begin shut down, phased out, truncated, we don’t 7 

care what you call it, we know you're going to 8 

close our children down.  Next month, I will be 9 

50 years old.  I am a product of the DOE system, 10 

of having, I address the commencement ceremony 11 

in August for the middle school students, for 12 

the district 17 who was given a second chance.  13 

And it really touched my heart because I am a 14 

product of second chances.  And I don't have a 15 

language barrier, I do not, I have a behavior 16 

barrier, but I didn't have a language barrier.  17 

But thank God nobody truncated me, phased me 18 

out, shut me down, closed me out for anything - 19 

- proud of us? 20 

[crosstalk] 21 

MS. TOWNSLEY:  Without the puppets that they 22 

control by the public - - they look like a thing 23 

for the children who's having a language barrier 24 

in this country.  This country has been build 25 
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and founded and we have people who come here 1 

for a second chance of life because America is 2 

supposed to be a country where have - - and 3 

we're supposed to be educated, we shouldn't, 4 

we're not supposed to be shutting them down.  5 

How do you sleep at night?  That's what I need 6 

to say - - how do you sleep at night?  You are a 7 

- - . 8 

[crosstalk] 9 

MS. TOWNSLEY:  - - actually sit up here and 10 

represent and maybe she should answer why this 11 

school needs to be closed down.  This school has 12 

a diverse population and you want to grade them 13 

on the same grading that, a scale, as a - - 14 

who's an American born citizen and has a 15 

language barrier, it's that - - .  Do you think 16 

that's fair?  You have children who failing 17 

schools whose parents did not copy - - the 18 

homework assignment because the homework - - the 19 

language barrier.  We need these services.  They 20 

need our help.  We opened up our floodgates in 21 

this country and said let these families come 22 

in.  We give them the right to come here, we're 23 

supposed to educate them.  We're supposed to 24 

make sure they're okay.  You have a high number 25 
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of homeless students in this, in this school 1 

building.  Therefore - - this premise, have you 2 

ever been homeless?  Have you ever been in a 3 

shelter?  Shame on you, where's your love, 4 

where's your - - wake up.  I'm just really tired 5 

- - failed again and stick them all tight, sit 6 

down.  I'm going to.  Okay, bottom line, parents 7 

of foreign languages here, please if you want an 8 

interpreter, talk to you parents, talk to them, 9 

let them know we have quite a struggle, a battle 10 

line and let them know we need them out here, we 11 

need the make sure they understand what's 12 

happening.  You know a lot of them don't 13 

understand what's going on right now.  You're 14 

taking advantage of them.  And when they have no 15 

schools to come to in district 17, because you 16 

shut all our schools down, now where will our 17 

children go?  Are you going to enroll them in 18 

the district 2 school?   19 

[crosstalk] 20 

MS. TOWNSLEY:  You know they're not going to 21 

enroll them in the district 2 school.  Why do 22 

they do this to our children?  Thank you.   23 

[crosstalk]  24 

MR. SETTLE:  At this time, I'd like to call 25 
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to the microphone Anne Marie Williams, Rick 1 

King, Dr., Reverend Dr. Robert Townsley, Massah 2 

Saffa and E. Campbell, Anne Marie Williams, Rick 3 

King, Reverend Dr. Robert Townsley, Massah Saffa 4 

and E. Campbell.  5 

ANNE MARIE WILLIAMS:  Good evening everyone.  6 

My name is Anne Marie Williams, I am the 7 

president of - - district 17, last year I was 8 

the treasurer of the, um, school - - and you 9 

talk about the - - and you said you engaging the 10 

parents and you said you're engage parents to - 11 

- .  So, we're behind the - - .  As a parent of 12 

district 17, we all want high, highest quality 13 

of education for our children.  How do we really 14 

provide that?  You, you have a state changing 15 

all the matrix and all the, the test goals and 16 

the, the saving schools and so they - - tomorrow 17 

schools are different.  This year was totally 18 

different from last year.  So, we need some kind 19 

of comprehensive review of - - the state 20 

standards.  Um, we, we - - when you talk about 21 

next steps.  And the next step for us right here 22 

in district 17 is for all members of PLT to 23 

stick together with it's three schools, the 24 

phased out schools, the truncation schools and 25 
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let's have a proper dialogue about what 1 

happening with this attitude.  All the schools 2 

that they, all the way to - - appraisal, we need 3 

to have a proper conversation, let's go to the 4 

SLTs, let's do what we got to do, because soon 5 

we're going to be district 17, known as the 6 

charter district.  No, not - - protest it.  7 

Let's go back and talk back to them.  We do not 8 

want - - for our children in district 17.  Yes, 9 

we come from great brunch and we have a value - 10 

- .  But it doesn’t give anybody any right to 11 

come and say that they're going to - - phase 12 

out, that we have an administration in the 13 

building that's supposed to know how to run a 14 

school, so help us.  So, if we have to come back 15 

and change a lot and do, take over - - send 16 

another staff to make it happen, but we want PS 17 

22 to stay open as 22, not PS 705.  Let's 22 18 

stay - - but let's come back and takeover.  That 19 

kind of - - especially, let's move towards that.  20 

That's the next step I'm going to ask you to 21 

deal with.  Thank you so much.   22 

FEMALE VOICE 3:  Number, number 12.  23 

[crosstalk] 24 

RICK KING:  Um, um, I believe the children 25 
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are our future, teach them all and let them 1 

lead the way.  - - in your opening statement and 2 

I quote, "parents shall deserve the best 3 

possible opportunity," and I commend you for 4 

saying that.  But in my hand I have two 5 

documents.  I have the document that states the 6 

PS 22, A, C, F.  This document from PS 277 in 7 

the Bronx speaks to A, C, F.  However, PS 22 has 8 

been given a reprieve and as we said, every 9 

child deserves the best possible opportunity.  10 

At this point in time, the students, the staff, 11 

the administration, the community deserves the 12 

best possible opportunity.  And I find it 13 

disheartening to know that the school received 14 

an A, C and F, the DOE does not involve 15 

basically the finest schools to avoid C and F.  16 

If you're going to bring in the new school and 17 

end up with an A, C and an F, what have you done 18 

basically to uplift this community?  What's the 19 

- - to make sure that these kids do not become 20 

failures.  You thought to phase things out.  21 

Phasing does not guarantee - - you have to give 22 

the support and the instructors that they need.  23 

This is a community that needs support.  This is 24 

a, a community that has many needs.  We ask that 25 
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Dr., uh, Gibson to make sure that you give PS 1 

22 the same opportunities that PS 277 is given 2 

because the parents all deserve the best 3 

possible opportunity and thank you.   4 

[crosstalk] 5 

REVEREND DOCTOR ROBERT TOWNSLEY:  Good 6 

evening.  My name is Reverend Dr. Robert 7 

Townsley, I'm on the, uh, NAACP Brooklyn branch 8 

executive board and - - pastor of St. Matthew's 9 

Trinidad Church and the vice president of the 10 

United 63 rd  Council of - - .  Um, I have a child, 11 

a full grown son, that's - - .  Um, this school, 12 

PS 22, had an A, then a C, then an F, am I 13 

correct?  It had an A for a long time before 14 

Bloomberg was mayor.   15 

[crosstalk] 16 

DR. TOWNSLEY:  It was established to deal 17 

with the children with issues.  They needed 18 

extra support.  And they had the support and 19 

they accomplished their tasks.  Bloomberg said 20 

he could do a better job than you all with the 21 

schools.  And then they started failing under 22 

him.  They weren't failing before.  161 was one 23 

of the top schools in the country.  - - Tucker - 24 

- school was on of the top in the country.  25 
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President Obama spoke about that school it was 1 

so top.  These schools are now failing because 2 

of what DOE is doing under their roofs.  Now if 3 

you judge us in certain ways, one way is 4 

academically, another way is through enrollment.  5 

But many of our children in this school come 6 

from shelters.  The trauma that they go through 7 

being displaced as they go from shelter to 8 

shelter and change their - - to come to school 9 

and sometimes have to be plucked out of a school 10 

to go to another school, it's devastating.  Um, 11 

I understand here that there's hope that they 12 

were Haitian children - - probably should have 13 

put in this school, the - - during that time of 14 

their trauma and - - and hate.  There were 15 

several children that were told, this school was 16 

told they were 3 and level 4 and when they were 17 

tested, they were levels 1 and 2.  So, it 18 

appears now that they got here and they dropped 19 

when that drop, they didn't drop.  Many of the 20 

students in this school that go from pre-K or K 21 

to 5 do very well and are placed in top middle 22 

schools.  So, the thing is, is how are you 23 

judging the academics we speak of.  You say that 24 

all schools have the same standards.  No, I 25 
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disagree with you.  Schools that have extra 1 

issues that they have to deal with children are 2 

not the same as the schools that don’t have 3 

those issues.  You have to judge the percentage 4 

of children that are under certain pressures and 5 

address them.  This school also, uh, lost 6 

$618,000.00.  That's a lot of resources that are 7 

taken away from these children that we're trying 8 

to help.  Now, the other issue is the issue of 9 

enrollment.  Now, I was at the - - when the 10 

question was asked by the parents there with 11 

what the DOE services is?  When do you stop 12 

holding that seat for a qualified student?  Now, 13 

a qualified student means that student is in 14 

this district, so forth and so on, there's a 15 

whole lot of ramifications.  If I move out of 16 

the district with my child, then I have another 17 

child that's coming into K school, that new 18 

child's coming into K school doesn't qualify for 19 

that school.  So, now, we wait.  I've been 20 

informed by Lee Cox that they won’t - - single 21 

office to enroll children when they're focused 22 

on seats in that school.  And in fact, when we 23 

talked to the principals, there are many seats 24 

in that school.  The question was asked how long 25 
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do you hold on to this for a qualified student 1 

and wouldn't you let it go for open enrollment?  2 

Because after a certain time, if that seats not 3 

full, still that school loses money and 4 

resources.  That question was never answered by 5 

that person on the panel.  So, I stood up and 6 

asked them again.  And they said well, after a 7 

certain time we respond.  You respond?  But how 8 

do they enroll that student?  That was never 9 

answered.  Um, these are problems that we need 10 

to, to address and I'm worried about.  Last but 11 

not least, and I really want to sit down, 12 

somebody asked all my questions, the facts of my 13 

case.  There are many ways of testing children 14 

on the knowledge that they have.  Some children 15 

do fail in written tests and certain parents and 16 

teachers know that.  And they're requested to 17 

give oral examinations, that's not even done 18 

here.  There are many different reasons and many 19 

different ways how you can find out whether this 20 

child is obtained the knowledge that he needs to 21 

obtain.  We're not looking at that.  They're 22 

just putting a test paper in front and then 23 

they're marking.  They're also switching up the 24 

names of the ways that they are teaching these 25 
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children, they're switching the style over and 1 

over again.  Now how is the child going to 2 

adjust and retain if one grade year score is 3 

down.  I think that it's, it's being planned for 4 

them to fail.  - - you want to privatize the 5 

schools but these schools are public schools. 6 

[crosstalk] 7 

DR. TOWNSLEY:  They're build with our 8 

children, they're not private children but 9 

they're public children - - public parents with 10 

public - - money.  This isn't private money and 11 

this is a private corporation.  You telling that 12 

certain information is not available to us but 13 

this is public money and it's public 14 

information.  So, I have a problem with that, 15 

with you made a decision with our schools, with 16 

our money and with our children without 17 

consulting us.  Thank you very much.  18 

MASSAH SAFFA:  Good evening everyone, my 19 

name is Massah Saffa and there is a saying that 20 

before kids can go place, that - - kids they 21 

need a place to go.  The kids already found PS 22 

22 as their home for education.  Now, these kids 23 

came from shelters, some of - - , some all the 24 

way from - - countries.  Everybody has - - in 25 
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their minds.  What are you guys are looking - 1 

- some of the records are written text, what are 2 

you developing to this - - .  This school, the 3 

teachers, administrators, everyone play a part, 4 

they play a part in a child's life for 5 

developing.  While the kids are learning how to 6 

have to fun, they're learning how to grow, so 7 

the school, they have, have a great impact on 8 

these kid's lives.  Everyone think we failed so 9 

many times.  Now because you have the A to C to 10 

F.  We failed so many times, but we wasn't given 11 

a chance.  We give the school a chance for 12 

developing, give these kids a chance for 13 

developing.  Every time you've asked - - for too 14 

long, these kids - - their mind for them to 15 

adjust to the system for them to be able to 16 

stable.  Once these kids are - - out of the 17 

school and a real - - school, you know what 18 

happens?  Their minds are closed until they 19 

adjust, during that whole year, what do you 20 

think happened to that child's life, the child's  21 

life is going to down.  So, you're not helping 22 

the kids, so give them a chance for them to 23 

learn and grow and this is a school that 24 

encourages parents, a mother, a single parent 25 
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with my child being a victim of abuse.  We 1 

take my child to three different schools.  No 2 

other school encourage me as a parent, all these 3 

schools have barrier, this is the only school, 4 

as a matter of fact, I was very - - I didn't 5 

want to bring my child here, ask the principal, 6 

I did a lot of - - , a lot of talk.  But after 7 

my child came here 2 nd  grade, I felt so 8 

comfortable this, in this school my child has no 9 

confidence when she was at all those three 10 

different schools and she learned greater 11 

confidence in this school from the day - - .   12 

[crosstalk]  13 

MS. SAFFA:  Now she can study for the - - ?  14 

Do you know what that means to me as a mother?  15 

That my child has been affected, please save 16 

this school.  One child needs something, so one 17 

thing it did to my child, it means a lot now to 18 

my child's life.  So, save this school.   19 

[crosstalk]  20 

ELIZABETH CAMPBELL:  Hello, my name is 21 

Elizabeth Campbell and I'm here as a teacher and 22 

in - - but I'm here representing Occupy 23 

Department of Education.  24 

[crosstalk] 25 
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MS. CAMPBELL:  - - um, I think that 1 

Department of Education is clear that their 2 

priorities are not our students and your 3 

students and it's disgusting the way the 4 

Department of Education is treating parents, 5 

teachers and community.  I, I just, so beyond 6 

the way the Department of Education should be 7 

acting.  They're, they're priorities should be 8 

about the students and it's very clear that 9 

they're not anymore.  So, I think that we have 10 

to take back the Department of Education, um, 11 

the truth is that any votes that go into the 12 

panel for education policy, it is put on, it's 13 

been, there's a vote and it's put up to the 14 

panel for educational policy, they will vote on 15 

it because it is, they're puppets of this mayor 16 

who, who really is much more interested in 17 

privatizing our public schools - - than he is 18 

interested in helping our students.  And it's, 19 

it's truly disgusting to me how many - - about 20 

it, um, in my opinion, we shouldn't let them 21 

take a vote, because it's not their say what 22 

happens to this school.   23 

FEMALE VOICE 4:  Thank you. 24 

MS. CAMPBELL:  It's your say.  It should be 25 
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your decision, this is your community, it's a 1 

public school, it belongs to the public, the 2 

people living in that community.  Um, so at 3 

panel for educational policy, um, I hope that 4 

they, we will not allow them to take a vote 5 

because they don’t have to right to - - puppets, 6 

um, appointed by the mayor and, um, and I hope 7 

to see everyone there and I really look forward 8 

to occupying that panel for educational policy 9 

meeting.   10 

[crosstalk]  11 

MR. SETTLE:  I'd like to call the following 12 

the microphone; Curtis Palnick, Delna Saffa, A. 13 

Naletsky and L. North, Lewis Knight and Takesha 14 

Robinson.  Curtis Palnick, Delna Saffa, A. 15 

Naletsky, L. North, Lewis Knight, Takesha 16 

Robison.   17 

[crosstalk]  18 

CURTIS PALNICK:  My name is - - .  I was a 19 

child at - - because of bad - - in my class.  20 

What I came to PS 22 in 2 nd  grade with the help 21 

of teachers, I did activities like acting, 22 

reading, singing and now I can speak with out a 23 

lisp and a - - .  Please don’t close, please 24 

don't close my school to - - move to the other 25 
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school where - - are closed til they adjust.  1 

Think about us, the children.   2 

 ALANA NALETSKY:  My name is Alana Naletsky, 3 

um, and I am special ed teacher, um, and I also 4 

here working with the department of - - .  Um, 5 

and I'm also here today because we need to do 6 

something different, we need to start making our 7 

own decisions and being at our school.  The more 8 

time that I spend in this - - seeing that the 9 

decisions of the committee are not being so very 10 

- - .  They're based on money and they're based 11 

on power.  Um, in this situation, it seems to be 12 

here that a private company came in and asked to 13 

use the space.  It's for a charter school has 14 

come and they want to - - .  And the Department 15 

of Education led talks and they are many 16 

indications of - - .  And then, they write a 17 

report that uses whatever numbers they can find 18 

to say what they want to say, they come to the 19 

conclusions to what - - .  And when you spend 20 

time visiting the classrooms, know that they 21 

control - - up on them.  You don't have to tell 22 

your - - go home no warning.  You help the child 23 

by figuring out what they need and by giving it 24 

to them.  You figure it out by trying everything 25 
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you can think of and - - work, figuring out 1 

what they need.  You help them by working with 2 

the parent and their communities so that they 3 

are getting what they need and that's not what 4 

the Department of Education is doing.  Anybody 5 

who has any common sense can, can see that you 6 

don't support a school by closing it.  You don't 7 

support a school by coming in here to go home 8 

four times a month - - .  You support a school 9 

by - - .   10 

 FEMALE VOICE 4:  Thank you.  11 

[crosstalk]  12 

LISA NORTH:  Hello everybody, my name is 13 

Lisa North and I'm a teacher, um, at the school 14 

right across Atlantic Avenue, PS3.  Um, and I've 15 

been through a number of school closings, um, 16 

and many within my district, district 13 and I 17 

basically hear the same thing I'm hearing here.  18 

Because if you are cutting budgets and not 19 

providing resources that our schools need.  Um, 20 

by the way, I think when you're talking about 21 

the school grades, there is charter school in 22 

district 13 - - received an F and - - allowed to 23 

stay, so you can see what they been - - 24 

priorities.  And I just want to say that I can 25 
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see these letter grades, I think they're 1 

dangerous, community - - , hey guess what, they 2 

- - for your school but that F that has - - 3 

represented and so this F here that you hear 4 

tonight does not represent this school.  So, I 5 

think we have to throw out this whole supposed 6 

grading system and we really have to look at our 7 

schools as communities and see what are their 8 

needs are and then provide the resources.  I 9 

think this is really a telling, um, factor about 10 

that.  And what DOE is doing basically is that 11 

they believe that this is, that they can enter 12 

the schools like a business model.  At the top 13 

of the business model is that - - are losers.  14 

Open some schools, close some schools, oh, that 15 

didn't work, close that one, the problem is 16 

these are all kids.  We're not talking about 17 

things or product, we're talking about children 18 

and so the only way to we can lead the schools 19 

is to give them the resources that, what we 20 

need.  So, um, what I also want to say is don't 21 

give up after this vote of the PEP on the 22 

February, February the 8 th  or whatever, I'm 23 

hopeful that, um, that there won't be a vote, 24 

but, um, but I want everybody to also realize 25 
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that there are more and more people all over 1 

the city, this is happening all over the city 2 

and more and more people are starting to realize 3 

that, that the Bloomberg's so-called reforms are 4 

not helping our children.  Um, I think one thing 5 

we all have to fight for is the - - control of 6 

our schools that, um, communities have a right 7 

to decide what happens to their school 8 

communities and then the schools in their 9 

communities.  So, I'd like to know what happened 10 

to democracy?  Mayoral control is as a 11 

dictatorship, so we have to fight to make sure 12 

that we take back, um, control of our 13 

communities and our schools.  There are lots of 14 

groups that you can work with, um, and so I'm 15 

saying people should - - um, active in their 16 

communities.  This whole issue for education 17 

justices and - - Coalition for Public Education 18 

was or - - educational - - and then Occupy the 19 

DOE.   20 

[crosstalk]  21 

LEWIS KNIGHT:  My name is - - Knight, I work 22 

here at PS 22.  This is my first year working in 23 

the public, I've worked in the Department of 24 

Education since I've worked for a charter school 25 
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for five years.  I tell my kids all the time 1 

do not let anyone teach them unless they model 2 

first.  And I'm modeling now because I'm 3 

advocating for them.  I'm a teacher at this 4 

school and I teacher school leader.  I - - 5 

decisions with Board of Education in closing our 6 

school.  I'm a parent and a teacher whose child 7 

went to public schools, how is this decision 8 

supporting our children?  They belong to us 9 

because they are our future.  Moreover, why - - 10 

be that's attacks how another quality to review?  11 

What is the real motive behind closing our 12 

school?  There are many schools that are having 13 

difficulty meeting Board of Education's 14 

expectations.  But they are given numerous 15 

opportunities to improve.  Was the support to 16 

our school differentiated?  We talk about 17 

differentiation because we have a large 18 

population of special education students.  We 19 

have taken - - tests to make many changes but 20 

was that equal to A1?  Many of us work 21 

tirelessly to support our children but it does 22 

not matter to anyone.  We believe in our 23 

children and that's why we're here as teachers.  24 

We too have made decisions based on data behind 25 
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a test.  We work tirelessly, tireless in - - 1 

use that data.  What is it?  The elimination of 2 

public education, it takes a village to raise a 3 

child, but this, this decision is an example of 4 

how much we have forgotten the idea of village 5 

raising a child.  How do you sleep at night 6 

knowing you have failed children?  Who's really 7 

benefiting from this decision?  Do you 8 

everything in your power for the education and 9 

support of us?  This school was built to 10 

facilitate and accommodate children of different 11 

learning styles.  Take a look at each classroom; 12 

do you see how beautiful they are?  This is, 13 

this school deserves a second chance.  Please 14 

think about that before you close PS 22.  15 

MR. SETTLE:  Thank you.  16 

TAKESHA ROBINSON:  Good evening parents, 17 

teachers, staff and members of the board.  My 18 

name is Takesha Robinson, I'm an active PTA 19 

volunteer, vice president and public parent.  20 

What I want to say is there's three ways.  21 

There's your way, the right way and my way.  How 22 

can we work together and make a well - - to make 23 

sure schools stay open.  We have these teachers 24 

- - old school.  When - - on how to keep the 25 
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school open?  What do you - - propose, why - - 1 

all the time instead of technically doing - - 2 

bring back up.  But you have time to hear 3 

tonight to say you don’t want another closed 4 

down because - - that's your right decision.  5 

Can you not give us a chance?  Can y'all - - to 6 

keep the school open.  If y'all take two seconds 7 

to make - - give us the opportunity, give us the 8 

time, the official time to do so, I can 9 

guarantee you this - - parents - - the staff 10 

close it down, we'll make a change - - good 11 

night.   12 

[crosstalk]  13 

MR. SETTLE:  Thank you.  This now concludes 14 

the public comment phase of our evening's 15 

agenda.  We will now begin a question and answer 16 

period.  I'd please like to remind everyone that 17 

if we do not get to your question specifically, 18 

we will post your question and a response on our 19 

website.  If you had, if you feel that you did 20 

not get an opportunity to pose your question, 21 

you are asked to contact us via email at the 22 

email, uh, listed at the bottom of your fact 23 

sheets or you may call us at that phone number, 24 

too, which is listed at the bottom of the fact 25 
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sheet.  At this time, I'll ask Ms., Ms. Gibbs, 1 

Dr. Gibson to please, uh, proceed with the 2 

question and answer phase.   3 

DR. GIBSON:  Thank you Mr. Settles, thank 4 

you for your comments.  I'm going to read the 5 

questions and answer them and I hope to get 6 

through all of them this evening.  First 7 

question is: what will happen to the 8 

administration or teachers who are currently at 9 

PS 22?  If PS 22 is phased out, all of the 10 

teachers and all of the administrators and the 11 

rest of the staff will be excess over the course 12 

of the phase out.  That means it takes two 13 

years, doesn’t happen in September.  The process 14 

will occur gradually.  With this school that's 15 

coming in, we'll - - review and take some 50% of 16 

the staff from the existing PS 22 if they chose 17 

to go.  And that's another form of making sure 18 

that the children that are currently in PS 22 19 

could possibly have some of the same teachers in 20 

the new school that comes to the building.  The 21 

DOE is proposing to open a new district school 22 

in this building along with the charter school.  23 

It's very important for you to understand that 24 

the children will have a place to go that's in 25 
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the building.  Some of the teachers will be 1 

the same, the children will have familiar 2 

environments, um, they will be in the same 3 

school, they'll be sharing the school and 4 

they'll be sharing - - same teachers.  Teachers 5 

may elect to apply for the positions, the new 6 

school is required to hire no less than 50% of 7 

their staff and the whole senior qualified staff 8 

from the phase out school.  The next question: 9 

why are you phasing out this school?  And this 10 

is what we've talked about all evening.  There's 11 

no one single reason and it's hard to compare 12 

one school to the next.  But if you look at the 13 

data from other schools that are similar, 14 

children are performing at higher rates and I 15 

think that one of the things that we need to 16 

mindful of is that we want all children to have 17 

rigorous education and I understand the math and 18 

I understand the - - and I understand the needs 19 

of the school community, but I also understand 20 

that when you look at the progress reporting 21 

concerned about the progress of the students and 22 

individual students, it's not the school, the 23 

individual students in the school are not 24 

progressing at the rate they should and that's a 25 



 62

concern.  The performance of the students in 1 

the school are not doing as well as they should.  2 

And an environmental survey was done by parents 3 

and the staff is saying that they're concerned 4 

with the school.  And then that's just some of 5 

the ways that we look at these decisions.  We 6 

see a declining enrollment, declining demand for 7 

the school, for example, less than 50% of the 8 

families who live in the zone was happy with 22.  9 

And I do understand that children are bused in 10 

and I do understand needs of the children with 11 

special ed needs that are coming into the 12 

building.  That has been taken into 13 

consideration.  In addition to understanding the 14 

data, we have conversations with school staff, 15 

parents, the community, we get all this - - a 16 

sense of what's happening in the school.  And 17 

this is not one way, we're not cookie cutter, 18 

it's taken at its own level and it's own, 19 

compared with its own self when these decisions 20 

have to be made.  The next question is what will 21 

happen with busing that the - - coming 4 th  grade 22 

students are receiving now?  There will be no 23 

change to the existing transportation practices 24 

of this school.  That remains the same, it 25 
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doesn't - - for students - - , you will still 1 

get the busing that you been getting.  All 2 

transportation will be continued to be provided 3 

as determined by the chancellor's 4 

recommendations.  That does not change.  This is 5 

a question that everyone's asked me and I think 6 

that's why it's important to understand that, 7 

that the school PS 705 that's coming in will be 8 

a district school, the children that are in this 9 

school can attend that school.  What will happen 10 

to admissions for the charter school?  The 11 

knowledge that this joint public hearing is to 12 

for the proposed phase out of PS 22 only.  This 13 

is separate from the joint public hearing that, 14 

that will be scheduled for proposing the new 15 

schools.  However, we will provide information 16 

as requested and I want parents and I think the 17 

other person that said that we should all come 18 

to the table, in my conversations with the 19 

principal is that, that, that, after tonight, 20 

that the proposal is approved to the phase out 21 

and out PS 705 comes into the building and the 22 

charter school comes in the building as 23 

scheduled for the principals to sit down and 24 

have a conversation to see how this works 25 
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because it is community and it should be a 1 

community.  Um, the next question: how will 2 

students with IEPs be provided for?  That's a 3 

very important question.  The students with 4 

special needs have mandated services and those 5 

mandated services will continue, they must 6 

continue, this is by law, that cannot change.  7 

All students with IEPs, the English language 8 

learners will continue to receive all language 9 

services as per the mandate.  Also the new zone 10 

elementary school will continue to serve both 11 

special ed and - - ICT students.  Will there be 12 

space in the building for two new schools?  I 13 

know it's hard to, to when you're sitting on the 14 

audience to say that there is space, um, that 15 

there will be a space for - - preschool in the 16 

building, but the number children probably won't 17 

change to that extent.  Um, tonight's hearing is 18 

for the proposed close out phase out, however in 19 

short yes, there will be space.  The building's 20 

- - capacity is 998, the current total 21 

enrollment at PS 22 is 448, which includes the 22 

pre-kindergarten program, this school happens to 23 

be at 48% utilization.  With both the new school 24 

is at scale, serving K to 5 students, 25 
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utilization rate is projected to be 60 to 73%.  1 

So, there should be room for - -, um, that's all 2 

the questions that I have.  Um, I thank you for 3 

coming and, um, if this proposal goes forth, 4 

more conversations need to be had, this is going 5 

to be essential for you, for parents to really 6 

understand what happens with PS 22, PS 705 and 7 

the charter school if that should be opened.  8 

Thank you and have a good evening.  9 

MR. SETTLE:  Thank you, Dr. Gibson.  Before 10 

we adjourn the meeting, I do want to, if you 11 

have further comments or further questions, we 12 

do ask that you provide them to us via the 13 

website address that is provided bottom of your 14 

fact sheet or call us at the phone number.  15 

Thank you, I hereby declare these proceedings 16 

adjourned, thank you.   17 

[END RECORDING] 18 
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